SHARE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT AMONG

GREENLITE CROWDFUNDING CORP.

- and -

PEAKBIRCH LOGIC INC.

- and -

THE PERSONS LISTED ON ANNEX 1 ATTACHED

Dated as of October 28, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
ARTICLE 1 D	EFINITIONS	1
1.1	Definitions.	1
1.2	Annexes and Exhibits.	7
ARTICLE 2 S	HARE EXCHANGE	8
2.1	Share Exchange	8
2.2	Purchase Price	8
2.3	Restrictions on Resale.	8
2.4	United States Restrictions	9
2.5	Closing	9
2.6	Closing Deliveries of the Vendors	9
2.7	Closing Deliveries of PeakBirch	10
ARTICLE 3 R	EPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY AND THE VENDORS	11
3.1	Organization and Authorization	11
3.2	Organizational Documents and Corporate Records	11
3.3	No Conflicts; Required Consents	11
3.4	Capitalization	12
3.5	Investments	12
3.6	Financial Statements	12
3.7	No Undisclosed Liabilities.	13
3.8	Indebtedness	
3.9	Cash Balance	
3.10	Absence of Certain Changes.	
3.11	Material Contracts.	13
3.12	Legal Proceedings.	
3.13	Compliance with Laws.	
3.14	Licenses.	
3.15	Personal Property.	
3.16	Intellectual Property	
3.17	Tax Matters	
3.18	Environmental Matters.	
3.19	Employment Matters.	
3.20	Affiliate Transactions.	
3.21	Directors and Officers.	
3.22	Insolvency.	
3.23	No Broker.	
ARTICLE 4 R	EPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE VENDORS	
4.1	Authorization.	
4.2	No Conflicts; Required Consents	
4.3	Ownership of the Greenlite Shares.	
4.4	Legal Proceedings.	
4.5	Insolvency.	
4.6	PeakBirch Shares.	18
ARTICLE 5 R	EPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PEAKBIRCH	19

	5.1	Organization	19
	5.2	Authorization.	19
	5.3	Organizational Documents and Corporate Records	19
	5.4	No Conflicts; Required Consents	19
	5.5	Capitalization	20
	5.6	Subsidiaries and Investments.	20
	5.7	Financial Statements	20
	5.8	No Undisclosed Liabilities.	21
	5.9	Indebtedness	21
	5.10	Material Contracts	21
	5.11	Legal Proceedings.	21
	5.12	Compliance with Laws.	21
	5.13	Licenses.	21
	5.14	Title to and Sufficiency of Assets.	22
	5.15	Tax Matters	22
	5.16	Environmental Matters	23
	5.17	Insolvency.	23
	5.18	Due Issuance.	23
	5.19	No Orders	24
ARTIC	LE 6 CC	OVENANTS	24
	6.1	Interim Operations	24
	6.2	Access to Information.	
	6.3	Notice of Certain Events.	
	6.4	Efforts.	
	6.5	Exclusivity.	
	6.6	Confidentiality	
	6.7	Expenses.	
	6.8	Non-Competition.	
	6.9	Further Assurances	
	6.10	Termination of Certain Arrangements	
ARTIC	LE 7 CC	ONDITIONS PRECEDENT	
	7.1	Conditions to the Obligations of the Parties	
	7.1	Conditions to the Obligations of the Vendors and the Company	
	7.3	Conditions to the Obligations of the Vendors and the Company	
ADTIC		· ·	
ARTIC		DEMNIFICATION	
	8.1	Indemnity by the Vendors.	
	8.2	Claim Notice.	
	8.3	Time Limits for Claim Notice for Breach of Representations and Warranties	
	8.4	Limitation of Liability.	
	8.5	Calculation of Damages.	
	8.6	Liability of the Vendors	
ARTIC	LE 9 PC	ST-CLOSING MATTERS	32
	9.1	PeakBirch Financing	32
ARTIC	LE 10 T	ERMINATION	32
	10.1	Grounds for Termination	33
	10.2	Notice of Termination	33

10.3	Effect of Termination.	33
ARTICLE 11 R	ELEASE	33
11.1	Vendors' Release	34
11.2	PeakBirch Release	34
ARTICLE 12 G	ENERAL PROVISIONS	35
12.1	Non-Survival of Representations, Warranties and Covenants	35
12.2	Notices.	
12.3	Counterparts.	36
12.4	Amendments and Waivers	36
12.5	Severability	36
12.6	Assignment; Successors and Assigns	37
12.7	No Third Party Beneficiaries.	
12.8	Governing Law	37
12.9	Specific Performance	
12.10	Interpretation; Absence of Presumption	
12.11	Independent Legal Advice.	
12.12	Announcements	
12.13	Entire Agreement.	38

SHARE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT

THIS SHARE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT (the "**Agreement**") is dated as of October 25, 2021 (the "**Agreement Date**") among: (i) PeakBirch Logic Inc. ("**PeakBirch**"); (ii) Greenlite Crowdfunding Corp. ("**Greenlite**" or the "**Company**"); and (iii) the Vendors (as hereinafter defined).

WHEREAS the Vendors collectively own, beneficially and of record, that number of Greenlite Shares (as hereinafter defined) specified on Annex 1 opposite the name of each of the Vendors;

WHEREAS PeakBirch wishes to acquire all of the outstanding shares in the capital of the Company in exchange for PeakBirch Shares (as hereinafter defined) (the "**Acquisition**") upon the terms and conditions set forth herein; and

WHEREAS the Vendors have agreed to the Acquisition.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth herein, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions.

For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms will have the following meanings:

"Acquisition Proposal" has the meaning specified in Section 6.5.

"Action" means any claim, action, arbitration, mediation, audit, hearing, investigation, proceeding, litigation or suit (whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative) commenced, brought, conducted or heard by or before, or otherwise involving, any Governmental Authority or mediator.

"Acquisition" has the meaning specified in the Preamble to this Agreement.

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any specified Person, any other Person that, at the time of determination, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such specified Person, including: (i) in the case of PeakBirch after the Closing, the Company; and (ii) in the case of a natural Person, any trust maintained for the benefit of such natural Person or such natural Person's spouse or descendants (whether natural or adopted). For purposes of this Agreement, the term "control" (including, with correlative meanings, the terms "controlled by" and "under common control with") means the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a Person, directly or indirectly, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

"Agreement" has the meaning specified in the Preamble to this Agreement.

"Agreement Date" has the meaning specified in the Preamble to this Agreement.

"Applicable Laws" means, with respect to any Person, any law (statutory, common or otherwise), rule, regulation, ordinance, order, injunction, judgment, award, decree, permit or determination of (or agreement with) a Governmental Authority, in each case binding on that Person or any of its assets or properties, including any stock exchange requirements.

"associate" has the meaning given to such term in the Securities Act (British Columbia).

"BCBCA" means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia).

"Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which banks in the Province of British Columbia are authorized or required by Applicable Laws to be closed.

"Closing" means the completion of the Contemplated Transactions on the Closing Date.

"Closing Date" means the date that is two Business Days after the completion of the Consolidation, or such other date as may be mutually agreed upon by the Parties on which the Closing occurs.

"Closing Time" means 11:00 a.m. (Vancouver time) on the Closing Date, or such other time as the parties may mutually determine.

"Company Business" means the business carried on by the Company as of the Agreement Date and as of the Closing Date, being the business of holding the Corporate IP.

"Company Material Adverse Effect" means any change, event, development, occurrence, state of facts, condition or effect (each, a "Company Effect") that is, or would reasonably be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate with all other Company Effects, materially adverse to the Company or the financial condition or results of operations of the Company taken as a whole.

"Company Required Licenses" has the meaning specified in Section 3.14.1.

"Company Securities" has the meaning specified in Section 3.4.3.

"Concurrent Financings" means the private placement to be completed by the PeakBirch of PeakBirch Shares at a price of \$0.05 per PeakBirch Share (on a post-Consolidation basis) for aggregate gross proceeds of not less than CAD\$250,000, in connection with which PeakBirch may pay commission or finder's fees up to the maximum amounts allowable by the policies of the CSE Exchange;

"Consolidation" means the consolidation of the PeakBirch Shares on the basis of 2.5 preconsolidation PeakBirch Shares for each post-consolidation PeakBirch Share, or such other ratio as may be necessary such that following the product of the consolidation ratio and the trading price of the PeakBirch Shares on the CSE on the last trading day prior to the consolidation is equal to \$0.05;

"Contemplated Transactions" mean collectively, the Acquisition, the Concurrent Financing, the PeakBirch Financing, and all other transactions and action contemplated by the Transaction Documents.

"Contract" means any contract, agreement, policy, lease, commitment, understanding or arrangement, whether written or oral to which a Party or any Affiliate thereof is a party, or is bound or affected by, or to which any of their respective properties or assets is subject.

"CSE Exchange" means the Canadian Securities Exchange.

"Corporate IP" has the meaning specified in Section 3.16.

"Damages" means, whether or not involving a third party claim, any loss, cost, liability, claim, interest, fine, penalty, assessment, Taxes, Damages available at law or in equity, or expense (including consultant's and expert's fees and expenses and reasonable costs, fees and expenses of legal counsel).

"Design" has the meaning specified in Section 3.15 of the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule.

"Employee Benefit Plan" means every plan, fund, contract, program and arrangement (whether written or not) for the benefit of present or former directors, officers or employees of the Company.

"Enforceability Limitations" means limitations on enforcement and other remedies by or arising under or in connection with applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and other similar Applicable Laws affecting creditors' rights generally or general principles of equity.

"Environmental Laws" means any Applicable Laws relating to environmental contamination, exposure to Hazardous Materials, the protection of the environment or the protection of human health and safety as it relates to the environment, but in each case, excluding any Applicable Laws relating to product liability.

"Exemption" has the meaning specified in Section 2.3.1.

"Fraud Claim" means any claim against any one or more of the Parties resulting from, in respect of, connected with, arising out of, under, or pursuant to fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation, intentional misrepresentation, willful breach or criminal conduct by such Person or Persons.

"GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles as set forth in the CPA Canada Handbook - Accounting for an entity that prepares its financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises, at the relevant time applied on a consistent basis.

"Governmental Authority" means any foreign, federal, state, provincial, federal, local or other government, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or commission, or any court, tribunal or judicial or arbitral body with competent jurisdiction.

"Greenlite Disclosure Schedule" means the disclosure schedule dated as of the Agreement Date delivered by the Company to PeakBirch prior to the execution and delivery of this Agreement. The Greenlite Disclosure Schedule will be arranged in sections and subsections corresponding to the numbered and lettered sections and subsections contained in ARTICLE 3 and ARTICLE 4. The Parties agree that an item disclosed in one section or subsection of the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule will apply only with respect to the indicated section or subsection, except to the extent that it is reasonably apparent on the face of the disclosure that such disclosure is also applicable to another section or subsection of the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule.

"Greenlite Financial Statements" means the unaudited financial statements of the Company for the period from the date of incorporation to a date within three business days of the Closing Date, to be provided by the Company.

"Greenlite Released Person" has the meaning specified in Section 11.2.

"Greenlite Shares" means the common shares in the capital of the Company.

"Hazardous Material" means: (i) any solid, liquid, gaseous or radioactive substance which, when it enters a premise, exists in the premise or is present in the water supplied to the premise, or released into the environment from the premise that is likely to cause material harm or degradation to any property or the environment or to any Person; (ii) any pollutants, contaminants, hazardous waste or other noxious substances; and (iii) any substance declared at any time by any Governmental Authority to be hazardous under any Environmental Law.

"Indebtedness" means, without duplication, in respect of a Person: (i) all obligations (including the principal amount thereof and, if applicable, the accreted amount thereof and the amount of accrued and unpaid interest thereon) of such Person, whether or not represented by bonds, debentures, notes or other securities or instruments (and whether or not convertible into any other security or instruments), for the repayment of money borrowed, whether owing to banks, to financial institutions, to Governmental Authorities, on equipment leases or otherwise; (ii) all deferred indebtedness of such Person for the payment of the purchase price of property or assets purchased (other than current accounts payable that were incurred in the ordinary course of business); (iii) all obligations of such Person to pay rent or other amounts under a lease which is required to be classified as a capital lease or a liability on a balance sheet prepared in accordance with GAAP, consistently applied; (iv) all outstanding reimbursement obligations of such Person with respect to letters of credit, bankers' acceptances or similar facilities issued for the account of such Person; (v) all obligations, contingent or otherwise, of such Person to repay any grant or subsidy; (vi) all obligations of such Person under any interest rate swap agreement, forward rate agreement, interest rate cap or collar agreement, or other financial agreement or arrangement entered into for the purpose of limiting or managing interest rate risks; (vii) all obligations secured by any Lien existing on property or assets owned by such Person, whether or not indebtedness secured thereby has been assumed; (viii) all guaranties, endorsements, assumptions and other contingent obligations of such Person in respect of, or to purchase or to otherwise acquire, indebtedness of others; and (ix) all premiums, penalties, fees, expenses, breakage costs and change of control payments required to be paid in respect of any of the foregoing on prepayment (regardless if any of such are actually paid), as a result of the consummation of the Contemplated Transactions.

"Intellectual Property" means, collectively, all rights in or affecting intellectual or industrial property or other proprietary rights existing in any jurisdiction, including with respect to the following: (i) patents and applications therefor, and patents issuing thereon, including continuations, divisionals, continuations-in-part, reissues, reexaminations, renewals and extensions, and the right to file other or further applications and claim priority thereto; (ii) trademarks, service marks, trade names, service names, brand names and trade dress rights, and all applications, registrations and renewals thereof; (iii) copyrights and registrations and applications therefor, works of authorship, "moral" rights and mask work rights; (iv) domain names, uniform resource locators and social media accounts or handles, including applications and registrations thereof; (v) telephone numbers; (vi) trade secrets; and (vii) the right to file applications and obtain registrations for any of the foregoing, as applicable.

"Knowledge of PeakBirch" means the actual knowledge of Marc Mulvaney, the Chief Executive Officer of PeakBirch, or Sean Duncombe, the Chief Operating Officer of PeakBirch, after reasonable internal and, as applicable, external, inquiry consistent with such individual's relationship or position with PeakBirch, so that, as a result of such inquiry, such individual is able to express an informed understanding as to the particular matters represented.

"Knowledge of the Vendors" means the actual knowledge of Jatinder Dhaliwal after reasonable internal and, as applicable, external, inquiry consistent with such individual's relationship or position with

the Company, so that, as a result of such inquiry, such individual is able to express an informed understanding as to the particular matters represented.

"Liability" means any liability, debt, obligation or commitment of any nature whatsoever (whether direct or indirect, known or unknown, accrued or unaccrued, absolute or contingent, or matured or unmatured), including any arising under any Applicable Laws, License, Action or Contract.

"License" means any license, permit, consent, approval, certification or other authorization of any Governmental Authority.

"Lien" means, with respect to any asset or property, any lien, mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, charge, security interest or encumbrance of any kind in respect of such asset or property.

"Notice" has the meaning specified in Section 12.2.

"Ordinary Course of Business" means the ordinary course of business consistent with past custom and practice (including with respect to quantity and frequency) of the Person in question, taking into account actions taken in connection with such Person's pursuit and implementation of the Contemplated Transactions.

"Organizational Documents" means: (i) the articles or certificate of incorporation and the bylaws of a corporation; (ii) the partnership agreement and any statement of partnership of a general partnership; (iii) the limited partnership agreement and the certificate of limited partnership of a limited partnership; (iv) the limited liability company agreement and articles or certificate of formation of a limited liability company; (v) any charter, indenture or similar document adopted or filed in connection with the creation, formation or organization of a Person; and (vi) any amendment to any of the foregoing.

"Party" means a party to this Agreement, and "Parties" means all of the parties to this Agreement.

"Payment Shares" has the meaning specified in Section 2.2.

"PeakBirch" has the meaning specified in the Preamble to this Agreement.

"PeakBirch Business" means the business carried on by PeakBirch as of the Agreement Date and as of the Closing Date, being the business of selling and distributing vaporizers, cannabis-related accessories, ancillary and cannabinoid products, via its e-commerce portals, as described further in the PeakBirch Disclosure Record.

"PeakBirch Disclosure Record" means the public disclosure of PeakBirch posted on its reporting issuer profile at www.SEDAR.com.

"PeakBirch Financial Statements" means the consolidated annual financial statements for the years ended October 31, 2020 and the condensed interim consolidated financial statements of PeakBirch for the six months ended April 30, 2021.

"PeakBirch Financing" means the private placement to be completed by the PeakBirch of PeakBirch Shares at a price of \$0.05 per PeakBirch Share for aggregate gross proceeds of not less than CAD\$500,000, in connection with which PeakBirch may pay commission or finder's fees up to the maximum amounts allowable by the policies of the CSE Exchange;

"PeakBirch Group Member" means PeakBirch and the wholly owned subsidiaries of PeakBirch, from time to time, including without limitation the subsidiaries described in the PeakBirch Disclosure Record.

"PeakBirch Material Adverse Effect" means any change, event, development, occurrence, state of facts, condition or effect (each, a "PeakBirch Effect") that is, or would reasonably be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate with all other PeakBirch Effects, materially adverse to PeakBirch or the financial condition or results of operations of PeakBirch taken as a whole.

"PeakBirch Released Person" has the meaning specified in Section 11.1.

"PeakBirch Required Licenses" has the meaning specified in Section 5.13.1.

"PeakBirch Securities" has the meaning specified in Section 5.5.2.

"PeakBirch Shares" means the common shares in the capital of PeakBirch.

"Permitted Liens" means: (i) statutory Liens for current Taxes that are not yet due and payable as of the Closing Date or are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings; (ii) other Liens that arise or are incurred in the Ordinary Course of Business (other than in connection with any Indebtedness), are not material in amount and do not adversely affect the title of, materially detract from the value of or materially interfere with any present use of, the assets or properties affected by such Lien.

"Person" means an individual, partnership, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, corporation, limited liability company, unlimited liability company, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated association, joint venture or other entity or Governmental Authority, and pronouns have a similarly extended meaning.

"Purchased Shares" has the meaning specified in Section 2.1.

"Securities Laws" means the securities legislation having application, the regulations and rules thereunder and all administrative policy statements, instruments, blanket orders, notices, directions and rulings issued or adopted by the applicable securities regulatory authority, all as amended.

"Solicit" means any direct or indirect communication of any kind whatsoever that invites, advises, encourages or requests any Person, in any manner, to take or refrain from taking any action.

"Subsidiary" means, in respect of any Person, any corporation, partnership, trust, unlimited liability company, limited liability company or other non-corporate business enterprise in which such Person owns stock or other ownership interests representing: (a) more than 50% of the voting power of all outstanding stock or ownership interest of such entity; or (b) the right to receive more than 50% of the net assets of such entity available for distribution to the holders of outstanding stock or ownership interests upon liquidation or dissolution of such entity.

"Tax" (including, with correlative meaning, the terms "Taxes" and "Taxable") means: (i) any and all taxes, duties, fees, excises, premiums, assessments, imposts, levies and other charges or assessments of any kind whatsoever imposed by any Governmental Authority, whether computed on a separate, consolidated, unitary, combined or other basis, including those levied on, or measured by, or described with respect to, income, gross receipts, profits, gains, windfalls, capital, capital stock, production, recapture, transfer, land transfer, license, gift, occupation, wealth, environment, net worth, Indebtedness, surplus, sales, goods and services, harmonized sales, use, value-added, excise, special assessment, stamp,

withholding, business, franchising, real or personal property, unclaimed property, escheat, health, employee health, payroll, workers' compensation, employment or unemployment, severance, social services, social security, education, utility, surtaxes, customs, import or export, and including all license and registration fees and all employment insurance, health insurance and government pension plan premiums or contributions; (ii) all interest, penalties, fines, additions to tax or other additional amounts imposed by any Governmental Authority on or in respect of amounts of the type described in paragraph (i); above or this paragraph (ii); (iii) any liability for the payment of any amounts of the type described in paragraphs (i) or (ii) as a result of being a member of an affiliated, consolidated, combined or unitary group for any period; and (iv) any liability for the payment of any amounts of the type described in paragraphs (i) or (ii) as a result of any express or implied obligation to indemnify any other Person or as a result of being a transferee or successor in interest to any Party.

"Tax Act" means the Income Tax Act (Canada).

"Tax Contest" means any audit, investigation, claim, challenge, dispute or controversy relating to Taxes.

"Tax Returns" means all returns, reports and other documents of every nature (including elections, declarations, disclosures, schedules, estimates and information returns) filed or required to be filed with any Governmental Authority relating to Taxes.

"Termination Date" has the meaning specified in Section 6.1.1.

"Transaction Documents" means, collectively, this Agreement and each other agreement, certificate or other document required pursuant to this Agreement to be executed and delivered on Closing.

"Transaction Expenses" means the aggregate of all expenses incurred by the Company, or for which the Company is responsible for paying on behalf of any other Person, in connection with the Contemplated Transactions (excluding any such costs incurred personally by the Vendors), including all investment banking, legal, accounting and other advisory fees incurred in respect of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

- "U.S. Person" means a "U.S. person" as defined in Rule 902(k) of Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act.
 - "U.S. Securities Act" means the United States Securities Act of 1933.

"**United States**" means the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any state of the United States and the District of Columbia.

"**Vendors**" means the registered holders of Greenlite Shares listed on Annex 1 hereof, as such Annex 1 shall be updated and amended from time to time in accordance with this Agreement.

1.2 Annexes and Exhibits.

The following Annexes and Exhibits form an integral part of this Agreement:

ANNEXES

Annex 1 Vendors

Annex 2 Payment Shares

EXHIBITS

Exhibit A Registration Instructions

ARTICLE 2 SHARE EXCHANGE

2.1 Share Exchange.

Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the Vendors covenant and agree, on their own behalf, to sell, assign and transfer to PeakBirch and PeakBirch covenants and agrees to purchase from the Vendors, the number of Greenlite Shares which are beneficially owned by the Vendors at the Closing Time (the "**Purchased Shares**"), being all of the issued and outstanding Greenlite Shares. For certainty, as of the Agreement Date, 5,000,100 Greenlite Shares are beneficially owned, collectively, by the Vendors.

2.2 Purchase Price.

In consideration for the acquisition of the Purchased Shares, PeakBirch shall, at the Closing Time, issue from treasury to the Vendors an aggregate of 36,000,000 PeakBirch Shares (on a post-Consolidation basis) free and clear of any and all Liens (the "**Payment Shares**"), as set out in Annex 2. The Payment Shares are being issued at a deemed value of CAD\$0.05 per Payment Share for a total valuation of approximately CAD\$1,800,000.

2.3 Restrictions on Resale.

The Vendors acknowledge and agree as follows:

- 2.3.1 the transfer of the Purchased Shares and the issuance of the Payment Shares in exchange therefor will be made pursuant to the take-over bid prospectus exemption found in Section 2.16 of National Instrument 45-106 *Prospectus Exemption* (the "**Exemption**");
- 2.3.2 as a consequence of acquiring the Payment Shares pursuant to the Exemption:
 - 2.3.2.1 the Vendors will be restricted from using certain of the civil remedies available under Securities Laws:
 - 2.3.2.2 the Vendors may not receive information that might otherwise be required to be provided to the Vendors, and PeakBirch is relieved from certain obligations that would otherwise apply under Securities Laws if the Exemption were not being relied upon by PeakBirch:
 - 2.3.2.3 no securities commission, stock exchange or similar regulatory authority has reviewed or passed on the merits of an investment in the Payment Shares;
 - 2.3.2.4 there is no government or other insurance covering the Payment Shares; and
 - 2.3.2.5 an investment in the Payment Shares in speculative and of high risk;

- 2.3.3 the certificates representing the Payment Shares will not bear any legends required by Securities Laws and the rules and policies of the CSE Exchange; and
- 2.3.4 the Vendors are knowledgeable of, or have been independently advised as to, the Applicable Laws of that jurisdiction which apply to the sale of the Purchased Shares and the issuance of the Payment Shares and which may impose restrictions on the resale of such Payment Shares in that jurisdiction and it is the responsibility of the Vendors to find out what those resale restrictions are, and to comply with them before selling the Payment Shares.

2.4 United States Restrictions.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, no Payment Shares shall be delivered to any Person in the United States or to any U.S. Person if PeakBirch determines, in its reasonable discretion, after consultation with the Vendors, that doing so may result in any contravention of the U.S. Securities Act or any applicable state securities laws.

2.5 Closing.

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Closing will take place at the Closing Time by way of electronic exchange of documents. All documents delivered and actions taken at the Closing will be deemed to have been delivered or taken simultaneously.

2.6 Closing Deliveries of the Vendors.

At or prior to the Closing, the Company and the Vendors will deliver or cause to be delivered to PeakBirch all of the following:

- 2.6.1 a certificate of status, good standing or like document for the Company issued as of a recent date by the applicable Governmental Authority evidencing the good standing of the Company;
- 2.6.2 a certificate of the President (or other Person acceptable to PeakBirch) of the Company, dated the Closing Date, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to PeakBirch, as to (i) the resolutions adopted by the board of directors of the Company authorizing and approving the Contemplated Transactions, which resolutions will have been certified as true, correct and in full force and effect without rescission, revocation or amendment as of the Closing Date; and (ii) the Purchased Shares being uncertificated shares (as defined in the BCBCA);
- 2.6.3 a certificate of the secretary of the Company, dated the Closing Date, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to PeakBirch, certifying: (i) that there have been no amendments to the Company's notice of articles, articles or other applicable constating documents since the Agreement Date; and (ii) the Company's notice of articles and articles as in effect as of the Closing Date:
- 2.6.4 a duly executed stock transfer power of attorney or other evidence authorizing the transfer of the Purchased Shares to PeakBirch;
- 2.6.5 the minute books and other corporate records of the Company;
- 2.6.6 the certificate of the Vendors required to be delivered pursuant to Section 7.3.4;

- 2.6.7 all consents, waivers or approvals required to be obtained by the Company with respect to the completion of the Contemplated Transactions, including the consents, waivers, approvals and actions of or by, and all filings with and notifications to, any Governmental Authority pursuant to Section 7.1.1:
- 2.6.8 a duly executed resignation and release in a form satisfactory to PeakBirch from each current director and officer of the Company listed on Section 3.21 of the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule;
- 2.6.9 resolutions and other corporate documents of the Company to evidence the issuance of the Greenlite Shares to the Vendors;
- 2.6.10 a duly executed assignment of intellectual property rights from the Vendors to the Company evidencing the Company's ownership of the Corporate IP, in a form satisfactory to PeakBirch, acting reasonably;
- 2.6.11 the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to PeakBirch; and
- 2.6.12 such other documents as may be required for the Acquisition and the Closing.

2.7 Closing Deliveries of PeakBirch.

At or prior to the Closing, PeakBirch will deliver or cause to be delivered to the Vendors all of the following:

- 2.7.1 a certificate of status, good standing or like document for PeakBirch issued as of a recent date by the applicable Governmental Authority evidencing the good standing of PeakBirch:
- 2.7.2 a certificate of the Chief Executive Officer (or other Person acceptable to the Vendors) of PeakBirch, dated the Closing Date, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Vendors, as to the resolutions adopted by the board of directors of PeakBirch authorizing and approving the Contemplated Transactions, which resolutions will have been certified as true, correct and in full force and effect without rescission, revocation or amendment as of the Closing Date;
- 2.7.3 DRS statements from PeakBirch's transfer agent, evidencing the registration of the Payment Shares in accordance with the registration instructions set out in **Annex 1 Vendors**

Shareholder	Address	Greenlite Shares Held	% of Greenlite Shares held as at the Agreement Date
Jatinder Dhaliwal	Redacted for Privacy	1,160,100	23.2%
Turris Investment Inc.	Redacted for Privacy	1,000,000	20.0%
Mercantile Holdings Inc.	Redacted for Privacy	1,000,000	20.0%

Nicole Jonzon	Redacted for Privacy	1,000,000	20.0%
1284368 BC Ltd.	Redacted for Privacy	840,000	16.8%
TOTAL:		5,000,100	100%

Annex 2 Payment Shares

No.	Name	Address	No. of PeakBirch Shares
1.	Jatinder Dhaliwal	Redacted for Privacy	8,352,553
2.	Turris Investment Inc.	Redacted for Privacy	7,199,856
3.	Mercantile Holdings Inc.	Redacted for Privacy	7,199,856
4.	Nicole Jonzon	Redacted for Privacy	7,199,856
5.	1284368 BC Ltd.	Redacted for Privacy	6,047,879
		TOTAL	36,000,000

2.7.4 **Exhibit A**, free of any restrictive legends;

- 2.7.5 evidence satisfactory to the Vendors and the Company, acting reasonably, of the completion of the Concurrent Financing (and, if applicable, the satisfaction of all conditions precedent for the release from escrow of the proceeds thereof (other than the completion of the Acquisition));
- 2.7.6 the certificate of PeakBirch required to be delivered pursuant to Section 7.2.4;
- 2.7.7 any consents, waivers or approvals required to be obtained by any PeakBirch Group Member with respect to the completion of the Contemplated Transactions, including the consents, waivers, approvals and actions of or by, and all filings with and notifications to, any Governmental Authority pursuant to Section 7.1.1.; and
- 2.7.8 such other documents as may be required for the Acquisition and the Closing.

ARTICLE 3 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY AND THE VENDORS

As an inducement to PeakBirch to enter into this Agreement and to complete the Contemplated Transactions, the Company and the Vendors, severally, represent and warrant to PeakBirch as set forth in this ARTICLE 3. The representations and warranties of the Company and the Vendors contained in this Agreement shall survive the completion of the Contemplated Transactions and shall expire and be terminated on the earlier of one year after the Closing Time and the date on which this Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms.

3.1 Organization and Authorization.

The Company (i) is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation; (ii) has the requisite corporate power and authority to own or lease and to operate and use its assets and properties and to carry on the Company Business as currently conducted; and (iii) is duly qualified or licensed to do business and is in good standing in British Columbia, which is the only jurisdiction in which the nature of the Company Business or the property or assets owned or leased or used by the Company makes such qualification or licensing necessary under Applicable Laws. The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder and to complete the Contemplated Transactions. This Agreement has been, executed and delivered by the Company, duly and validly executed and delivered by the Company, and (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the other Parties) this Agreement constitutes, a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, subject to the Enforceability Limitations.

3.2 Organizational Documents and Corporate Records.

The Company has previously delivered or made available to PeakBirch true and complete copies of the Company's Organizational Documents. The Company is not in default under or violation of any provision of its Organizational Documents. The Company has previously delivered or made available to PeakBirch true and complete copies of the Company's minute books. The books and records of the Company are true and complete in all material respects and have been maintained in compliance with Applicable Laws.

3.3 No Conflicts; Required Consents.

- 3.3.1 The execution and delivery by the Company and the Vendors of this Agreement to which the Vendors are a party do not, and the completion by the Company or the Vendors of the Contemplated Transactions will not: (i) conflict with or violate any provision of the Company's Organizational Documents; or (ii) (A) conflict with or violate any Applicable Laws binding upon or applicable to the Company or any of its assets or properties; or (B) conflict with, violate, result in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of, constitute a default or an event that, with notice or lapse of time or both, would become a default under, give to others any rights of acceleration, termination or cancellation or a loss of rights under, or result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon the Greenlite Shares or any assets or properties of the Company under, any Contract or License to which the Company is a party or by which the Company or any of its assets or properties is bound.
- 3.3.2 Except as disclosed in Section 3.3.2 of the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule, no consent, approval or authorization of, or registration, declaration or filing with, or notification to, any Governmental Authority or under any Contract is required to be obtained, made or given by the Company as a result of the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement or the completion of the Contemplated Transactions.

3.4 Capitalization.

- 3.4.1 The authorized share capital of the Company consists of unlimited common shares without par value and preferred shares without par value, of which 5,000,100 Greenlite Shares and nil preferred shares are issued and outstanding as of the Agreement Date.
- 3.4.2 All Greenlite Shares of the Company have been duly authorized, are validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, were not issued in violation of any Applicable Laws, and, are not subject to and were not issued in violation of any preemptive rights, rights of first refusal or rights of first offer.
- 3.4.3 Except for the Greenlite Shares, there are no outstanding: (i) shares or other voting securities or other equity interests of the Company; (ii) securities of the Company convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares or other voting securities of the Company; (iii) subscriptions, options or other rights to acquire from the Company, or other obligation of the Company to issue or deliver, any shares, other voting securities, or securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares or other voting securities, of the Company; (iv) bonds, debentures, notes or other Indebtedness of the Company having the right to vote (or convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for securities having the right to vote) on any matters with the shareholders of the Company; or (v) stock appreciation, "phantom" stock or other equity equivalent rights with respect to the Company (the items in clauses (i) through (v) are collectively referred to as the "Company Securities").
- 3.4.4 (i) There are no outstanding obligations of the Company to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any Company Securities; (ii) there are no agreements to register any Company Securities or sales or re-sales thereof under any applicable Securities Laws; and (iii) there are no shareholder agreements, voting trusts or other similar agreements or understandings to which the Company or, to the Knowledge of the Vendors, any holder of Company Securities is a party or otherwise bound in respect of any Company Securities, other than as contemplated herein.

3.5 Investments.

The Company does not directly or indirectly own, of record or beneficially, any securities or other equity interests in, or have any investment in or control, any Person.

3.6 Financial Statements.

- 3.6.1 The Company will, prior to the Closing Date, deliver or make available to PeakBirch, true and complete copies of the Greenlite Financial Statements. The Greenlite Financial Statements (i) will be prepared from, and are in accordance with, the books of account and other financial records of the Company, which reflect only actual transactions; (ii) will be prepared in accordance with GAAP consistently applied during the periods involved; and (iii) will present fairly and accurately, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company as of the dates thereof or for the periods covered thereby.
- 3.6.2 All accounts, notes and other receivables reflected on the Greenlite Financial Statements will have arisen from *bona fide* transactions in the Ordinary Course of Business, and are or will be valid, genuine and fully collectible in the Ordinary Course of Business without resort to litigation or extraordinary collection activity, less any reserves for doubtful accounts reflected on the Greenlite Financial Statements.

3.7 No Undisclosed Liabilities.

The Company does not have any Liabilities in excess of an aggregate of \$2,500, which Liabilities will be disclosed in the Greenlite Financial Statements, other than Transaction Expenses.

3.8 Indebtedness.

3.8.1 Other than Transaction Expenses, (i) The Company has no Indebtedness; (ii) the Company has not guaranteed any Indebtedness of any Person; (iii) there are no Liens on any Company Securities; and (iv) other than Permitted Liens, there are no Liens on the assets or properties of the Company.

3.9 Cash Balance

The Company has and will maintain until Closing, a cash balance of at least \$250,000, free of any encumbrance.

3.10 Absence of Certain Changes.

- 3.10.1 Since November 19, 2019 (the date of incorporation), the Company has conducted business only in the Ordinary Course of Business, and there has not been:
- (a) any change, condition, event or occurrence that has had or would reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect;
- (b) any material damage, destruction or other casualty loss (whether or not covered by insurance) affecting the business or the assets or properties of the Company; or

(c) any action authorized or taken that, if authorized or taken after the Agreement Date, would constitute a breach of any covenant set forth in Section 6.1.2.

3.11 Material Contracts.

- 3.11.1 The Company is not a party to or otherwise bound by any Contract that imposes any Liability or obligation on the Company or which entitles the Company to any payment, in each case, in an amount in excess of CAD\$5,000 or more.
- 3.11.2 The Company is not a party to or bound by any Contract that purports to limit the ability of the Company (or would limit the ability of the Company or any PeakBirch Group Member after Closing) to compete in any line of business or with any Person or to operate in any geographic area during any period of time.

3.12 Legal Proceedings.

There is no Action pending or, to the Knowledge of the Vendors, threatened against the Company. The Company is not subject to or otherwise bound by any Applicable Law that prohibits or limits in any material respect the conduct of the Company Business.

3.13 Compliance with Laws.

The Company has at all times conducted, and currently conducts, its business in compliance with all Applicable Laws. The Company and the Vendors have not received any notice of any violation of and, to the Knowledge of the Vendors, the Company is not under investigation or review by any Governmental Authority with respect to, and has not been threatened to be charged with, any violation of any Applicable Laws.

3.14 Licenses.

- 3.14.1 The Company holds or possesses, and is in compliance with, all Licenses required for the lawful conduct of the Company Business as currently conducted (the "Company Required Licenses"). The Company has not received any notice advising of the refusal to grant any License that has been applied for or is in process of being granted and there is no reason to believe that any such Governmental Authority is considering taking or would have reasonable ground to take any such action.
- 3.14.2 The Company does not hold cannabis or cannabis-related operations or interests in the United States (including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, employees, facilities, royalty entitlements or investments in a United States based cannabis business), or sell or distribute cannabis into the United States.

3.15 **Personal Property.**

All material tangible personal property used or held for use in the operation or conduct of the Company Business, as currently conducted, has been reasonably maintained, is in good operating condition (with the exception of normal wear and tear) and is suitable for its present uses.

3.16 Intellectual Property.

3.16.1 The Company through its provisional patent exclusively owns and possesses valid and enforceable rights, title and interest in and to all Intellectual Property used in or necessary to operate its business, as disclosed in Section 3.16 of the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule, including without limitation the Design as defined in Section 3.16 of the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule (the "Corporate IP"), free and clear of any Liens, and no third party has been granted any license on such Intellectual Property.

3.16.2 In addition:

- (a) The Company's prior and current use of the Corporate IP has not and does not infringe, violate, dilute or misappropriate the Intellectual Property of any Person and there are no claims pending or threatened by any Person with respect to ownership, validity, enforceability, effectiveness or use of the Corporate IP. The Company is not aware of any facts that indicate a likelihood of any of the foregoing. No Person has or is infringing, misappropriating, diluting or otherwise violating any of the Corporate IP, and neither the Company nor any affiliate of the Company has made or asserted any claim, demand or notice against any Person alleging any such infringement, misappropriation, dilution or other violation.
- (b) The Company has the right to use the Corporate IP. The Vendors do not own any right, title or interest in any Corporate IP. No current or former director or employee retains or claims to have any ownership or right to use the Corporate IP.
- (c) The Company has not disclosed or licensed, and the Company does not have a duty or obligation (whether present, contingent, or otherwise) to disclose or license the Design to any person. No event has occurred, and no circumstance or condition exists, that (with or without notice or lapse of time) will, or could reasonably be expected to, result in the disclosure or license of the Design to any person.
- (d) The Company has taken commercially reasonable steps under the circumstances to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and value of the Corporate IP and the Company has not received any requests from any Person for disclosure of the Design or any other source code making up any part of the Corporate IP.
- (e) The Company is not bound by any outstanding judgment, injunction, order or decree restricting the use of the Corporate IP or restricting the licensing thereof to any person or entity.

3.17 Tax Matters.

3.17.1 The Company: (i) timely filed (or has had timely filed on its behalf) each material Tax Return required to be filed or sent by it in respect of any Taxes, each of which was correctly completed and accurately reflected any liability for Taxes of the Company covered by such Tax Return in all material respects; (ii) timely and properly paid (or had paid on its behalf) all material Taxes due and payable by it for all Tax periods or portions thereof prior to Closing whether or not shown on such Tax Returns; (iii) established in the Company's books of account, in accordance with GAAP and consistent with past practices, adequate reserves for the payment of any material Taxes not then due and payable; and (iv) complied in all material respects with all Applicable Laws relating to the withholding of Taxes and the payment thereof. The Company has not incurred any liability for any

material Taxes for the period commencing on November 19, 2019 (the date of incorporation) and ending on and including the Closing Date other than in the Ordinary Course of Business or in connection with the Contemplated Transactions.

- 3.17.2 The Company has made (or caused to be made on its behalf) all material estimated Tax payments required to have been made to avoid any underpayment penalties.
- 3.17.3 There are no material Liens for Taxes upon any assets of the Company, except Liens for Taxes not yet due. The Company has not requested any extension of time within which to file any material Tax Return, which Tax Return has not since been filed.
- 3.17.4 There is no material Tax Contest pending or, to the Knowledge of the Vendors, threatened against the Company.
- 3.17.5 No material deficiency for any Taxes has been proposed, asserted or assessed against the Company that has not been resolved and paid in full. No waiver, extension or comparable consent given by the Company regarding the application of the statute of limitations with respect to any material Taxes or any material Tax Return is outstanding, nor is any request for any such waiver or consent pending. There has been no material Tax audit or other administrative proceeding or court proceeding with regard to any Taxes or any Tax Return for any Tax year that is currently pending, nor has there been any notice from a Governmental Authority to the Company regarding any such Tax, audit or other proceeding, or, to the Knowledge of the Vendors, is any such Tax audit or other proceeding threatened with regard to any Taxes or Tax Returns. There are no material outstanding subpoenas or requests for information with respect to any of the Tax Returns of the Company.
- 3.17.6 The Company does not have any liability for any material Taxes in a jurisdiction where it does not file a Tax Return, nor has the Company received notice from a taxing authority in such a jurisdiction that it is or may be subject to taxation by that jurisdiction.
- 3.17.7 The Company is not a party to any material Tax allocation or sharing agreement.
- 3.17.8 The Company: (i) has not been a member of an affiliated group filing a consolidated Tax Return (other than a group the common parent of which was the Company) and (ii) does not have any material liability for the Taxes of any Person (other than the Company) as a transferee or successor, by Contract, or otherwise.
- 3.17.9 There are no circumstances existing which could result in the application of section 17, section 78, section 79, or sections 80 to 80.04 of the Tax Act, or any equivalent provision under applicable provincial law, to the Company. The Company has not claimed, and does not propose to claim, any reserve or credit under any provision of the Tax Act or any equivalent provincial provision, for any period prior to the Closing where any amount could be included in the income of the Company for any period ending after the Closing Date.
- 3.17.10 The Company has not acquired property or services from, or disposed of property or provided services to, a Person with whom it does not deal at arm's length (within the meaning of the Tax Act) for an amount that is other than the fair market value of such property or services, nor has the Company been deemed to have done so for purposes of the Tax Act.

3.18 Environmental Matters.

The Company is in compliance in all respects with, and has no Liability of any nature or kind under, applicable Environmental Laws. The Company has not incurred any Liability with respect to Environmental Laws.

3.19 Employment Matters.

The Company does not have, and has not at any time had, any employees. The Company does not have, and has not at any time entered into, any employment agreement, independent contractor agreement, or consulting agreement with any Person. The Company does not have or maintain, nor has it ever had or maintained, any Employee Benefit Plan.

3.20 Affiliate Transactions.

The Company does not lease any assets or properties from, owe any amount to or use or hold in the Company Business any assets or properties of the Vendors or any Affiliate or associate thereof.

3.21 Directors and Officers.

Section 3.21 of the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list of all directors and officers of the Company.

3.22 Insolvency.

- 3.22.1 The Company is not insolvent, nor will it be rendered insolvent as a result of the completion of the Contemplated Transactions. For the purposes hereof, "insolvent" means that the sum of the debts and other probable Liabilities of the Company exceeds the present fair saleable value of its assets.
- 3.22.2 Immediately prior to the completion of the Contemplated Transactions, the Company will be able to pay its Liabilities as they become due in the Ordinary Course of Business.

3.23 No Broker.

No broker, finder, investment banker or other intermediary is entitled or has claimed to be entitled to any fee or commission in connection with the Contemplated Transactions based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of the Company.

ARTICLE 4 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE VENDORS

As an inducement to PeakBirch to enter into this Agreement and to complete the Contemplated Transactions, the Vendors hereby severally represent and warrant to PeakBirch as set forth in this Article 4. The representations and warranties of the Vendors contained in this Agreement shall survive the completion of the Contemplated Transactions and shall expire and be terminated on the earlier of one year after the Closing Time and the date on which this Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms.

4.1 Authorization.

Each of the Vendors has the requisite power, authority and legal capacity to execute and deliver this Agreement to which such Vendor is a party, to perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder and

to complete the Contemplated Transactions. This Agreement has been duly and validly executed and delivered by such Vendor, and (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the other Parties) this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of such Vendor, enforceable against such Vendor in accordance with their respective terms, subject to the Enforceability Limitations.

4.2 No Conflicts; Required Consents.

- 4.2.1 The execution and delivery by the Vendors of this Agreement and the completion by the Vendors of the Contemplated Transactions will not: (i) conflict with or violate any Applicable Laws binding upon or applicable to the Vendors, or any of his/her Greenlite Shares; or (ii) conflict with, violate, result in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of, constitute a default or an event that, with notice or lapse of time or both, would become a default under, give to others any rights of acceleration, termination or cancellation or a loss of rights under, or result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon the Greenlite Shares under, any Contract or License to which any Vendor is a party or by which any Vendor is bound.
- 4.2.2 Except as disclosed in Section 4.2.2 of the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule, no consents, approval or authorization of, or registration, declaration or filing with, or notification to, any Governmental Authority or under any Contract is required to be obtained, made or given by the Vendors as a result of his/her execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement or the completion of the Contemplated Transactions.

4.3 Ownership of the Greenlite Shares.

Each of the Vendors owns, beneficially and of record, and has good and valid title to, the number of Greenlite Shares set forth opposite such Vendor's name on Annex 1, free and clear of any and all Liens. Except as set forth in the Organizational Documents of the Company, there are no limitations or restrictions on the Vendors' right to sell or transfer the Greenlite Shares owned by the Vendors.

4.4 Legal Proceedings.

There is no Action pending or, to the knowledge of the Vendors, threatened against or affecting any Vendor that, if determined or resolved adversely to any Vendor, would have a Company Material Adverse Effect on such Vendor's ability to perform his/her obligations hereunder or to timely complete the Contemplated Transactions.

4.5 Insolvency.

Each of the Vendors is not an insolvent Person and will not be rendered insolvent as a result of the completion of the Contemplated Transactions.

4.6 PeakBirch Shares.

4.6.1 The PeakBirch Shares to be issued to the Vendors in connection with the Contemplated Transactions are being acquired as principal for the Vendor's own account for investment and will not be transferred by the Vendor in violation of Applicable Laws. No Person other than the Vendors has any interest in or any right to acquire the PeakBirch Shares issuable to the Vendors. The Vendors' financial condition is such that each of the Vendors is able to bear the risk of holding such PeakBirch Shares for an indefinite period of time and the risk of loss of such Vendor's entire investment in PeakBirch.

- 4.6.2 The Vendors have performed their own due diligence investigation with respect to the acquisition of the PeakBirch Shares to the extent the Vendors have deemed necessary or desirable. No representations or warranties have been made to the Vendors by PeakBirch or any stockholder, officer, director, employee, agent or representative of PeakBirch, other than as set forth in this Agreement.
- 4.6.3 The Vendors acknowledge that PeakBirch is relying on an exemption from the requirement to provide the Vendors with a prospectus under Applicable Laws and, as a consequence of acquiring the PeakBirch Shares pursuant to such exemption, certain protections, rights and remedies provided by the Applicable Laws will not be available to the Vendors.
- 4.6.4 Each of the Vendors is not a "non-resident" of Canada within the meaning of the Tax Act.
- 4.6.5 Each of the Vendors is not a U.S. Person and is not acquiring PeakBirch Shares for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a Person in the United States.

ARTICLE 5 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PEAKBIRCH

As an inducement to the Vendors to enter into this Agreement and to complete the Contemplated Transactions, PeakBirch hereby represents and warrants to the Vendors as set forth in this Article 5. The representations and warranties of PeakBirch contained in this Agreement shall survive the completion of the Contemplated Transactions and shall expire and be terminated on the earlier of one year after the Closing Time and the date on which this Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms.

5.1 Organization.

PeakBirch (i) is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation; (ii) has the requisite corporate power and authority to own or lease and to operate and use its assets and properties and to carry on the PeakBirch Business as currently conducted; and (iii) is duly qualified or licensed to do business and is in good standing in each jurisdiction in which the nature of the PeakBirch Business or the property or assets owned or leased or used by PeakBirch makes such qualification or licensing necessary under Applicable Laws.

5.2 **Authorization**.

PeakBirch has the requisite corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement to which it is a party, to perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder and to complete the Contemplated Transactions. This Agreement has been duly and validly executed and delivered by PeakBirch, and (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the Company and the Vendors) this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of PeakBirch, enforceable against PeakBirch in accordance with their respective terms, subject to the Enforceability Limitations.

5.3 Organizational Documents and Corporate Records.

PeakBirch has previously delivered or made available to the Company true and complete copies of PeakBirch's Organizational Documents. PeakBirch is not in default under or violation of any provision of its Organizational Documents. The books and records of PeakBirch are true and complete in all material respects and have been maintained in compliance with Applicable Laws.

5.4 No Conflicts; Required Consents.

- 5.4.1 The execution and delivery by PeakBirch of this Agreement to which PeakBirch is a party do not, and the completion by PeakBirch of the Contemplated Transactions will not, (i) conflict with or violate any provision of PeakBirch's Organizational Documents; or (ii) (A) conflict with or violate any Applicable Laws binding upon or applicable to PeakBirch or any of its material assets or properties; or (B) conflict with, violate, result in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of, constitute a default or an event that, with notice or lapse of time or both, would become a default under, give to others any rights of acceleration, termination or cancellation or a loss of rights under, or result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon the PeakBirch Shares or any assets or properties of PeakBirch under, any material Contract or License to which PeakBirch is a party or by which PeakBirch or any of its material assets or properties is bound.
- 5.4.2 No consent, approval or authorization of, or registration, declaration or filing with, or notification to, any Governmental Authority or any other third party is required to be obtained, made or given by PeakBirch as a result of the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by it or the completion of the Contemplated Transactions, except the approval of the CSE Exchange and the filings with Governmental Authorities and payments required by securities and corporate laws.

5.5 Capitalization.

- 5.5.1 The authorized share capital of PeakBirch consists of: (i) an unlimited number of PeakBirch Shares, of which 151,374,717 PeakBirch Shares are issued and outstanding as of the Agreement Date (on a pre-Consolidation basis); and (ii) an aggregate of up to (A) 10,968,390 PeakBirch Shares are issuable upon the exercise of stock options, (B) 7,063,398 PeakBirch Shares are issuable upon the exercise warrants, and (C) 5,432,616 PeakBirch Shares are issuable upon conversion of restricted share units, as of the Agreement Date.
- 5.5.2 Other than in connection with the Concurrent Financing, the PeakBirch Financing and as set forth in the PeakBirch Disclosure Record, there are no outstanding: (i) shares or other voting securities or other equity interests of PeakBirch; (ii) securities of PeakBirch convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares or other voting securities of PeakBirch; (iii) subscriptions, options or rights to acquire from PeakBirch, or other obligation of PeakBirch to issue or deliver, any shares, other voting securities, or securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares or other voting securities, of PeakBirch; (iv) bonds, debentures, notes or other Indebtedness of PeakBirch having the right to vote (or convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for securities having the right to vote) on any matters with the shareholders of PeakBirch; or (v) stock appreciation, "phantom" stock or other equity equivalent rights with respect to PeakBirch (the items in clauses (i) through (v) are collectively referred to as the "PeakBirch Securities").
- 5.5.3 Except as set forth in the PeakBirch Disclosure Record, (i) there are no outstanding obligations of PeakBirch to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any PeakBirch Securities; (ii) there are no agreements to register any PeakBirch Securities or sale or re-sales thereof under any applicable Securities Laws; and (iii) there are no shareholder agreements, voting trusts or other similar agreements or understandings to which PeakBirch or, to the Knowledge of PeakBirch, any holder of PeakBirch Securities is a party or otherwise bound in respect of any PeakBirch Securities.

5.6 Subsidiaries and Investments.

The PeakBirch Disclosure Record sets forth a true and complete list of PeakBirch's ownership, whether direct or indirect, or of record or beneficial, of all securities or other equity interests in, or investment in or control of, any Person.

5.7 Financial Statements.

- 5.7.1 The PeakBirch Disclosure Record contains the PeakBirch Financial Statements. The PeakBirch Financial Statements (i) have been prepared from, and are in accordance with, the books of account and other financial records of the PeakBirch Group Members, which reflect only actual transactions; (ii) have been prepared in accordance with GAAP consistently applied during the periods involved; and (iii) present fairly and accurately, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the PeakBirch Group Member, as applicable, as of the dates thereof or for the periods covered thereby.
- 5.7.2 All accounts, notes and other receivables reflected on the PeakBirch Financial Statements have arisen from *bona fide* transactions in the Ordinary Course of Business, and are or will be valid, genuine and fully collectible in the Ordinary Course of Business without resort to litigation or extraordinary collection activity, less any reserves for doubtful accounts reflected on the PeakBirch Financial Statements.

5.8 No Undisclosed Liabilities.

Except as set forth in the PeakBirch Disclosure Record, no PeakBirch Group Member has any Liabilities, other than Liabilities: (i) disclosed in the PeakBirch Financial Statements; or (ii) similar in nature and amount to those disclosed in the PeakBirch Financial Statements that have been incurred since December 31, 2019 in the Ordinary Course of Business and not in violation of this Agreement.

5.9 Indebtedness.

Except for the Indebtedness described in PeakBirch Disclosure Record: (i) no PeakBirch Group Member has any material Indebtedness; (ii) no PeakBirch Group Member has guaranteed any Indebtedness of any Person; (iii) there are no material Liens on any PeakBirch Securities; and (iv) other than Permitted Liens, there are no Liens on the assets or properties of any PeakBirch Group Member.

5.10 Material Contracts.

The PeakBirch Disclosure Record includes the material contracts of the PeakBirch Group Members required to be made available to the public in accordance with Applicable Law. PeakBirch's material contracts are in full force and effect in accordance with their terms and no PeakBirch Group Member thereto is in any material breach of or default under any such Contract.

5.11 Legal Proceedings.

There is no Action pending or, to the Knowledge of PeakBirch, threatened against any PeakBirch Group Member. No PeakBirch Group Member is subject to or otherwise bound by any Applicable Laws that prohibits or limits in any material respect the conduct of the PeakBirch Business.

5.12 Compliance with Laws.

Each PeakBirch Group Member has at all times conducted, and currently conducts, its business in compliance with all Applicable Laws. None of the PeakBirch Group Members has received any notice of any violation of and, to the Knowledge of PeakBirch, no PeakBirch Group Member is under investigation or review by any Governmental Authority with respect to or has been threatened to be charged with any violation of any Applicable Laws.

5.13 Licenses.

- 5.13.1 Except as set forth in the PeakBirch Disclosure Record, each PeakBirch Group Member holds or possesses, and each is in compliance with, all Licenses required for the lawful conduct of the PeakBirch Business as currently conducted (the "PeakBirch Required Licenses"). No PeakBirch Group Member has received any notice advising of the refusal to grant any License that has been applied for or is in process of being granted and there is no reason to believe that any such Governmental Authority is considering taking or would have reasonable ground to take any such action.
- 5.13.2 Except as set forth in the PeakBirch Disclosure Record, no PeakBirch Group Member holds cannabis or cannabis-related operations or interests in the United States (including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, employees, facilities, royalty entitlements or investments in a United States based cannabis business), or sells or distributes cannabis into the United States.

5.14 Title to and Sufficiency of Assets.

The PeakBirch Group Members have, and at the Closing will have, good, valid and marketable title to, or in the case of leased assets and properties a valid leasehold interest in, all of the assets and properties that each PeakBirch Group Member purports to own or lease, in each case free and clear of any and all Liens (other than Permitted Liens). There is no Contract granting any Person any option to purchase the assets or properties of any PeakBirch Group Member or any portion thereof outside of the Ordinary Course of Business. The assets and properties owned or leased by the PeakBirch Group Members constitute all of the assets and properties required to conduct the PeakBirch Business in the manner and to the extent now conducted.

5.15 Tax Matters.

- 5.15.1 Each PeakBirch Group Member: (i) timely filed (or has had timely filed on its behalf) each material Tax Return required to be filed or sent by it in respect of any Taxes, each of which was correctly completed and accurately reflected any liability for Taxes of such PeakBirch Group Member covered by such Tax Return in all material respects; (ii) timely and properly paid (or had paid on its behalf) all material Taxes due and payable by it for all Tax periods or portions thereof prior to Closing whether or not shown on such Tax Returns; (iii) established in such entity's books of account, in accordance with GAAP and consistent with past practices, adequate reserves for the payment of any material Taxes not then due and payable; and (iv) complied in all material respects with all Applicable Laws relating to the withholding of Taxes and the payment thereof. No PeakBirch Group Member will incur any liability for any material Taxes for the period commencing on November 1, 2018 and ending on and including the Closing Date other than in the Ordinary Course of Business or in connection with the Contemplated Transactions.
- 5.15.2 Each PeakBirch Group Member has made (or caused to be made on its behalf) all material estimated Tax payments required to have been made to avoid any underpayment penalties.

- 5.15.3 There are no material Liens for Taxes upon any assets of any PeakBirch Group Member, except Liens for Taxes not yet due. No PeakBirch Group Member has requested any extension of time within which to file any material Tax Return, which material Tax Return has not since been filed.
- 5.15.4 There is no material Tax Contest pending or, to the Knowledge of PeakBirch, threatened against any PeakBirch Group Member.
- 5.15.5 No material deficiency for any Taxes has been proposed, asserted or assessed against any PeakBirch Group Member that has not been resolved and paid in full. No waiver, extension or comparable consent given by any PeakBirch Group Member regarding the application of the statute of limitations with respect to any material Taxes or any material Tax Return is outstanding, nor is any request for any such waiver or consent pending. There has been no material Tax audit or other administrative proceeding or court proceeding with regard to any Taxes or any Tax Return for any Tax year that is currently pending, nor has there been any notice from a Governmental Authority to any PeakBirch Group Member regarding any such Tax, audit or other proceeding, or, to the Knowledge of PeakBirch, is any such Tax audit or other proceeding threatened with regard to any Taxes or Tax Returns. There are no material outstanding subpoenas or requests for information with respect to any of the Tax Returns of any PeakBirch Group Member.
- 5.15.6 No PeakBirch Group Member has any liability for any material Taxes in a jurisdiction where it does not file a Tax Return, nor has any PeakBirch Group Member received notice from a taxing authority in such a jurisdiction that it is or may be subject to taxation by that jurisdiction.
- 5.15.7 No PeakBirch Group Member is party to any material Tax allocation or sharing agreement.
- 5.15.8 PeakBirch: (i) has not been a member of an affiliated group filing a consolidated Tax Return (other than a group the common parent of which was PeakBirch) and (ii) does not have any material liability for the Taxes of any Person (other than PeakBirch) as a transferee or successor, by Contract, or otherwise.
- 5.15.9 No PeakBirch Group Member has acquired property or services from, or disposed of property or provided services to, a Person with whom it does not deal at arm's length (within the meaning of the Tax Act) for an amount that is other than the fair market value of such property or services, nor has any PeakBirch Group Member been deemed to have done so for purposes of the Tax Act.

5.16 Environmental Matters.

Each PeakBirch Group Member is in material compliance in all respects with, and has no material Liability of any nature or kind under, applicable Environmental Laws. No PeakBirch Group Member has incurred any material Liability with respect to Environmental Laws, including, for certainty, any Liability arising out of any fact or matter relating to any other PeakBirch Group Member.

5.17 Insolvency.

No PeakBirch Group Member is insolvent, nor will it be rendered insolvent as a result of the completion of the Contemplated Transactions. For the purposes hereof, "insolvent" means that the sum of the debts and other probable Liabilities of any PeakBirch Group Member exceeds the present fair saleable value of its assets.

5.18 **Due Issuance.**

The PeakBirch Shares, when issued and delivered in accordance with this Agreement, will be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and will not be issued in violation of any Applicable Laws, and will not be subject to and will not be issued in violation of any preemptive rights, rights of first refusal or rights of first offer.

5.19 **No Orders.**

No Governmental Authority has issued any order which is currently outstanding preventing or suspending trading in any securities of PeakBirch, and no such proceeding is, to the Knowledge of PeakBirch, pending, contemplated or threatened. PeakBirch does not have in place a shareholder right protection plan.

ARTICLE 6 COVENANTS

6.1 Interim Operations.

- 6.1.1 From the Agreement Date until the earlier of the Closing Date or the date, if any, on which this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 10.1 (the "**Termination Date**"), except as otherwise provided in this Agreement:
 - 6.1.1.1 the Company will, and the Vendors will cause the Company to: (i) conduct the Company Business only in the Ordinary Course of Business; and (ii) use its commercially reasonable efforts to preserve intact the business organization and goodwill of the Company Business and to maintain the Company relationships with its customers, clients and other Persons having business dealings with the Company; and
 - 6.1.1.2 PeakBirch will (i) conduct the PeakBirch Business only in the Ordinary Course of Business; (ii) use its commercially reasonable efforts to preserve intact the business organization and goodwill of the PeakBirch Business and to maintain the PeakBirch relationships with its customers, clients and other Persons having business dealings with PeakBirch; and (iii) take all necessary corporate action and proceedings to approve the Concurrent Financing and authorize the issuance of the Payment Shares to the Vendors; and (iv) complete the Concurrent Financing;
- 6.1.2 Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except as expressly permitted or required by this Agreement or as approved in writing by PeakBirch, from the Agreement Date until the earlier of the Closing Time or the termination of this Agreement in accordance with its terms, the Company will not, and the Vendors will not permit the Company to:
 - 6.1.2.1 amend or otherwise change its Organizational Documents, except in respect of:
 - (i) the Consolidation;
 - (ii) an amendment of the articles of the Company to allow for the consolidation of PeakBirch Shares by ordinary resolution of the board of directors of PeakBirch;
 and

- (iii) a name change with prior approval from the Company;
- 6.1.2.2 take any action that would permit any Lien over any cash assets of the Company;
- 6.1.2.3 authorize, issue, sell or transfer any share capital or other equity interests of the Company or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for share capital or other equity interests of the Company, or adjust, split or reclassify any share capital or other equity interests of the Company, except in connection with the Concurrent Financing and the PeakBirch Financing;
- 6.1.2.4 declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution (whether in cash, stock or other property) in respect of any share capital or other equity interests of the Company;
- 6.1.2.5 merge or consolidate with any other Person or acquire any business or assets of any other Person (whether by merger, stock purchase, asset purchase or otherwise), or form any Subsidiary;
- 6.1.2.6 adopt a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolution, restructuring, recapitalization or other reorganization;
- 6.1.2.7 make any material change in the operation of business, except such changes as may be required to comply with this Agreement or any Applicable Laws;
- 6.1.2.8 make, authorize or make any commitment with respect to, any single capital expenditure that is in excess of CAD\$1,000 or capital expenditures that are, in the aggregate, in excess of CAD\$5,000;
- 6.1.2.9 except in connection with operations in the Ordinary Course of Business and upon terms not materially adverse to the Company, amend in any material respect, or terminate (other than in accordance with its terms) any Contract material to the Company Business, or waive, release or assign any material rights or claims thereunder;
- 6.1.2.10 except in connection with operations in the Ordinary Course of Business and upon terms not materially adverse to the Company, enter into any Contract material to the Company Business: (i) that has a term of, or requires the performance of any obligations over a period in excess of one month; or (ii) that cannot be terminated without penalty on less than one (1) months' notice;
- 6.1.2.11 sell, lease (as lessor), transfer or otherwise dispose of, or mortgage, encumber, pledge or impose any Lien on, any of its assets or properties, other than dispositions of immaterial assets or properties for fair value in the Ordinary Course of Business;
- 6.1.2.12 create, incur, assume or guarantee any Indebtedness, other than Transaction Expenses, or extend or modify any existing Indebtedness;
- 6.1.2.13 make any loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, any Person;

- 6.1.2.14 cancel any debts owed to, or waive any material claims or rights held by the Company;
- 6.1.2.15 commence, settle or compromise any Action by or against the Company, other than settlements entered into in the Ordinary Course of Business and requiring only the payment of monetary Damages in an aggregate amount not to exceed CAD\$1,000;
- 6.1.2.16 incur expenses (including legal or other professional fees) in excess of CAD\$10,000 in the aggregate in connection with any ongoing, new or proposed Action involving or relating to the Company, but excluding any Transaction Expenses;
- 6.1.2.17 except as required by Applicable Laws or any existing Contract in effect on the Agreement Date: (i) institute or announce any increase in the compensation, bonuses or other benefits payable to any of its executive employees or consultants; (ii) enter into or amend any employment, consulting, severance or change of control agreement with any such Person; or (iii) enter into or adopt any Employee Benefit Plan;
- 6.1.2.18 enter into any transaction with any of its Affiliates, except transactions that are at prices and on terms and conditions not less favorable to the Company than could be obtained on an arm's-length basis from unrelated third parties;
- 6.1.2.19 make any change in the accounting methods, principles or policies of the Company, other than any change required by Applicable Laws or a change in GAAP;
- fail to file any material Tax Return when due or pay any material Tax when due (other than Taxes being contested in good faith), or make or change any Tax election;
- 6.1.2.21 fail to pay any accounts payable when due or within a reasonable period of time thereafter (other than amounts being contested in good faith) or fail to use commercially reasonable efforts to collect any accounts receivable when due;
- 6.1.2.22 fail to renew or otherwise keep in full force and effect any material License relating to the Company Business;
- 6.1.2.23 fail to use its best efforts to take all required steps and actions (including the payment of all fees and expenses) necessary to obtain, and maintain in good standing, any Company Required License; or
- 6.1.2.24 enter into any Contract with respect to any of the foregoing, except in connection with the Concurrent Financing and the PeakBirch Financing.
- 6.1.3 PeakBirch covenants to hold a meeting of its shareholders to approve the Consolidation no later than December 16, 2021, and will effect such Consolidation no later than two Business Days after the required shareholder approval is obtained.

6.2 Access to Information.

From the Agreement Date until the earlier of the Closing Date or the Termination Date:

- 6.2.1 the Company will (and the Vendors will cause the Company to), subject to compliance with Applicable Laws, furnish to PeakBirch and its authorized representatives such additional information relating to the Company and the Company Business as PeakBirch may reasonably request; and
- 6.2.2 PeakBirch will, subject to compliance with Applicable Laws, furnish to the Vendors and their authorized representatives such additional information relating to PeakBirch and any other PeakBirch Group Members and the PeakBirch Business as the Vendors may reasonably request.

6.3 Notice of Certain Events.

- 6.3.1 From the Agreement Date until the earlier of the Closing Date or the Termination Date, the Company will (and the Vendors will cause the Company to) promptly notify PeakBirch in writing of: (i) any Company Material Adverse Effect; (ii) any breach of or default under this Agreement, or any event that would reasonably be expected to become a breach or default under this Agreement on or prior to the Closing; (iii) any notice or other communication from any third Person (including any Governmental Authority) alleging any required consent of such third Person (or Governmental Authority) is or may be required in connection with the Contemplated Transactions; (iv) any Actions commenced or, to the Knowledge of the Vendors, threatened against the Company that, if pending on the Agreement Date, would have been required to have been disclosed pursuant to Section 3.12 or that relate to the completion of the Contemplated Transactions; and (v) any communications from any Governmental Authority relating to any License held or applied for by the Company.
- 6.3.2 From the Agreement Date until the earlier of the Closing Date or the Termination Date, PeakBirch will promptly notify the Vendors in writing of: (i) any PeakBirch Material Adverse Effect; (ii) breach of or default under this Agreement, or any event that would reasonably be expected to become a breach or default under this Agreement on or prior to the Closing; (iii) any notice or other communication from any third Person (including any Governmental Authority) alleging that any required consent of such third Person (or Governmental Authority) is or may be required in connection with the Contemplated Transactions; (iv) any Actions commenced or, to the Knowledge of PeakBirch, threatened against any PeakBirch Group Member that, if pending on the Agreement Date, would have been required to have been disclosed pursuant to Section 5.11 or that relate to the completion of the Contemplated Transactions; and (v) any communications from any Governmental Authority relating to any License held or applied for by any PeakBirch Group Member.

6.4 Efforts.

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each Party will use its commercially reasonable efforts to satisfy the conditions to Closing to be satisfied by it under ARTICLE 7 and to cause the Closing to occur and to take, or cause to be taken, all actions, to file, or cause to be filed, all documents and to do, or cause to be done, and to assist and cooperate with the other Parties in doing, all things necessary, proper or advisable to complete and make effective, in the most expeditious manner practicable, the Contemplated Transactions.

6.5 Exclusivity.

From the Agreement Date until the earlier of the Closing Time and the termination of this Agreement in accordance with its terms, except with the prior written consent of PeakBirch, the Vendors and the

Company will not (and will cause all directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives and Affiliates acting on their behalf and on behalf of the Company not to): (i) Solicit, initiate, encourage or accept any offer or proposal from any Person (other than the PeakBirch Group Members and their respective representatives) concerning any merger, consolidation, sale or transfer of material assets, sale or transfer of any equity interests or other business combination involving the Company (an "Acquisition Proposal"); (ii) engage in any discussions or negotiations with any Person (other than the PeakBirch Group Members and their respective representatives) concerning any Acquisition Proposal; or (iii) furnish any non-public information concerning the business, properties or assets of the Company to any Person (other than the PeakBirch Group Members and their respective representatives), except as required to comply with any Applicable Laws or this Agreement or except in the Ordinary Course of Business. The Vendors and the Company will (and will cause the directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives and Affiliates acting on their behalf and on behalf of the Company to) immediately cease and cause to be terminated all existing discussions, negotiations or other communications with any Persons conducted heretofore with respect to any of the foregoing. The Vendors will immediately notify PeakBirch in writing upon receipt by the Company, or any Vendor, of any proposal, offer or inquiry regarding an Acquisition Proposal, which notice will indicate in reasonable detail the identity of the Person making such proposal, offer or inquiry and the terms and conditions of any such Acquisition Proposal.

6.6 Confidentiality.

- 6.6.1 Except with respect to an announcement pursuant to Section 12.12 of the Contemplated Transactions, no Party shall disclose this Agreement or any other aspects of the Contemplated Transactions to any Person except (i) to its board of directors, senior management, employees and legal, accounting, financial or other professional advisors, but, in each case only to the extent that such representatives have been informed of the confidential nature of such information and are bound by an obligation to maintain the confidentiality of such information, (ii) as is required to enforce its rights or the obligations of another Party under this Agreement, or (iii) as may be required by any Applicable Laws and, then, only in compliance with Section 6.6.2.
- 6.6.2 In the event that a Party or any of its representatives is required by any Applicable Law in any proceeding to disclose this Agreement or any aspects of the Contemplated Transactions, such Party will provide the other Parties with prompt prior notice so that the other Parties (or any of them) may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy and/or waive compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. In the event that no other Party is able to obtain such protective order or other appropriate remedy, the first Party will furnish only that portion of this Agreement or the aspects of the Contemplated Transactions which it is advised by a written opinion of counsel is legally required, and will give the other Parties written notice of the information to be disclosed as far in advance as practicable, and will exercise commercially reasonable efforts to obtain a protective order or other reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the information so disclosed.

6.7 Expenses.

PeakBirch will bear and pay all of their costs and expenses (including the fees and expenses of PeakBirch's and Greenlite's counsel, accountants and other advisors) incurred in connection with this Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions, whether or not the Contemplated Transactions are completed. The Company will not be responsible or liable for and will not pay any costs or expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions (including the fees and expenses of any counsel, accountant or other advisor retained by or for the benefit of any such Person).

6.8 Non-Competition.

From and after the Closing, each of the Vendors agree that the Vendors will not, during the period commencing as of the Closing Date and ending on the date that is 12 months thereafter, for any reason, without the PeakBirch's express prior written consent, directly or indirectly, either as an individual or in conjunction with any other Person, whether acting as a principal, agent, employee, independent contractor or in any other capacity whatsoever, within the United States and Canada, advise, manage, carry-on, be engaged in, concerned with, have an interest in or permit the Vendor's name or any part thereof to be used or employed by any company or business entity that is engaged in the Company Business.

6.9 Further Assurances.

At any time and from time to time following the Closing, at the reasonable request of any Party, each Party will execute and deliver, or cause to be executed and delivered, such other documents and instruments and will take, or cause to be taken, such further or other actions as any other Party may reasonably request or as otherwise may be reasonably necessary or desirable to evidence and make effective the Contemplated Transactions.

6.10 Termination of Certain Arrangements.

On or prior to the Closing Date, all payables, receivables, loans, Liabilities and other obligations between the Company, on the one hand, and a Vendor or his/her respective Affiliates, on the other hand, will be repaid in full and extinguished.

ARTICLE 7 CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

7.1 Conditions to the Obligations of the Parties.

The obligations of the Parties to complete the Contemplated Transactions are subject to the satisfaction or (to the extent permitted by Applicable Laws) waiver by PeakBirch and the Vendors, on or prior to the Closing Date, of each of the following conditions:

- 7.1.1 <u>Governmental Approvals</u>. All consents, approvals and actions of or by, and all filings with and notifications to, any Governmental Authority required to complete the Contemplated Transactions will have been obtained, taken or made, as applicable, and will remain in full force and effect.
- 7.1.2 <u>No Prohibitions.</u> No provision of any Applicable Laws will prohibit or otherwise challenge the legality or validity of the Contemplated Transactions.

7.2 Conditions to the Obligations of the Vendors and the Company.

The obligations of the Vendors and the Company to complete the Contemplated Transactions are subject to the satisfaction or (to the extent permitted by Applicable Laws) waiver by the Vendors, on or prior to the Closing Date, of each of the following further conditions:

7.2.1 Accuracy of Representations and Warranties. Each of the representations and warranties of PeakBirch set forth in this Agreement; (i) that is qualified by materiality or PeakBirch Material Adverse Effect will be true and correct in all respects; and (ii) that is not so qualified will be true and

correct in all material respects, in each case at and as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (except to the extent that any such representations and warranties speak expressly as of an earlier date, in which case they will be true and correct, or true and correct in all material respects, as the case may be, as of such earlier date).

- 7.2.2 <u>Performance of Covenants</u>. PeakBirch will have performed or complied in all material respects with all covenants, agreements and obligations required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by PeakBirch on or prior to the Closing Date.
- 7.2.3 <u>No PeakBirch Material Adverse Effect.</u> Between the Agreement Date and the Closing Date, there will have been no PeakBirch Material Adverse Effect.
- 7.2.4 <u>Certificate of Compliance</u>. PeakBirch will have delivered to the Vendors a certificate dated the Closing Date, signed by an authorized officer of PeakBirch, certifying as to the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Section 7.2.1, Section 7.2.2 and Section 7.2.3.
- 7.2.5 <u>Third Party Consents</u>. PeakBirch will have obtained the written consents of, or given notifications (to the extent only notification is required) to, the CSE Exchange, and any other third party or Governmental Authority that Applicable Law requires consent or notification, in each case in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Vendors, and all such consents will remain in full force and effect.
- 7.2.6 <u>Receipt of Closing Deliveries</u>. PeakBirch will have executed and delivered, or caused to be executed and delivered, all of the agreements, certificates and other documents specified in Section 2.7.
- 7.2.7 <u>PeakBirch Shares</u>. PeakBirch shall deliver to the Vendors certificates or DRS statements evidencing the Payment Shares issuable pursuant to Section 2.2.

7.3 Conditions to the Obligations of PeakBirch.

The obligations of PeakBirch to complete the Contemplated Transactions are subject to the satisfaction or (to the extent permitted by Applicable Laws) waiver by PeakBirch, on or prior to the Closing Date, of each of the following further conditions:

- 7.3.1 Accuracy of Representations and Warranties. Each of the representations and warranties of the Vendors and the Company set forth in this Agreement and in any certificate or other writing delivered by them pursuant hereto: (i) that is qualified by materiality or Company Material Adverse Effect will be true and correct in all respects; and (ii) that is not so qualified will be true and correct in all material respects, in each case at and as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (except to the extent that any such representations and warranties speak expressly as of an earlier date, in which case they will be true and correct, or true and correct in all material respects, as the case may be, as of such earlier date).
- 7.3.2 <u>Performance of Covenants</u>. The Company and the Vendors have performed or complied in all material respects with all covenants, agreements and obligations required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by the Company or any of the Vendors on or prior to the Closing Date.

- 7.3.3 <u>No Company Material Adverse Effect</u>. Between the Agreement Date and the Closing Date, there will have been no Company Material Adverse Effect.
- 7.3.4 <u>Certificate of Compliance</u>. The Vendors will have delivered to PeakBirch a certificate dated the Closing Date, signed by the Vendors, certifying as to the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Section 7.3.1, Section 7.3.2 and Section 7.3.3.
- 7.3.5 <u>Third Party Consents</u>. The Company and the Vendors will have obtained the written consents of, or given notifications (to the extent only notification is required) to, each of the third parties set forth in Section 3.3.2 and Section 4.2.2 of the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule, in each case in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to PeakBirch, and all such consents will remain in full force and effect.
- 7.3.6 <u>Board Approval</u>. The board of directors of the Company will have approved the Acquisition.
- 7.3.7 <u>No Outstanding Securities</u>. As of Closing there will be no outstanding securities of the Company which are convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Greenlite Shares or other securities of the Company.
- 7.3.8 Receipt of Closing Deliveries. The Company and the Vendors will, as applicable, have executed and delivered, or caused to be executed and delivered, all of the agreements, certificates and other documents specified in Section 2.6, all in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to PeakBirch.
- 7.3.9 <u>Rectification of Minute Book Deficiencies</u>. The Company will have rectified its corporate records related to the issuance of Greenlite Shares to the Vendors, and any other minute book deficiencies.
- 7.3.10 <u>Greenlite Disclosure Schedule.</u> The Company and the Vendors shall have delivered to PeakBirch the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule in the form and substance reasonably satisfactory to PeakBirch. The disclosure in the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule shall have not materially modified the representations and warranties of the Company and the Vendors.
- 7.3.11 <u>Greenlite Financial Statements.</u> The Company shall have delivered the Greenlite Financial Statements to PeakBirch, which financial statements shall not be materially different from the representations and warranties of the Company and the Vendors as set out herein.

ARTICLE 8 INDEMNIFICATION

8.1 Indemnity by the Vendors.

8.1.1 The Vendors (the "Indemnifying Parties") will each severally indemnify PeakBirch, PeakBirch's Affiliates, the Company and their respective representatives (each an "Indemnified Party") and defend and save them fully harmless against, and will reimburse them for, any Damages arising from, in connection with or related in any manner whatsoever to any material incorrectness in or material breach of any representation or warranty in Section 3.16 as at the Closing Date.

8.1.2 For greater certainty and without limiting the generality of the foregoing provision, the indemnity provided for in this Section 8.1 will extend to any Damages arising from any act, omission or state of facts that occurred or existed prior to the Closing Date.

8.2 Claim Notice.

If an Indemnified Party becomes aware of any act, omission or state of facts that may give rise to Damages in respect of which a right of indemnification is provided for under this ARTICLE 8, the Indemnified Party will promptly give written notice thereof (a "Claim Notice") to the Indemnifying Parties. The Claim Notice will specify whether the potential Damages arise as a result of a claim by a Person against the Indemnified Party (a "Third Party Claim") or whether the potential Damages arise as a result of a claim directly by the Indemnified Party against the Indemnifying Parties (a "Direct Claim"), and will also specify with reasonable particularity (to the extent that the information is available):

- (a) the factual basis for the Direct Claim or Third Party Claim, as the case may be; and
- (b) the amount of the potential Damages arising therefrom, to the extent known.

8.3 Time Limits for Claim Notice for Breach of Representations and Warranties.

No Damages may be recovered from the Vendors pursuant to Section 8.1 unless (subject to the Fraud Claim exception below) a Claim Notice is delivered by the applicable Indemnified Party on or before the date that is 18 months after Closing, provided, however, that in the event of a Fraud Claim relating to any applicable representation and warranty, then notwithstanding the foregoing time limitations, the Indemnified Parties will be entitled to deliver a Claim Notice at any time for purposes of such a claim.

8.4 Limitation of Liability.

The aggregate amount of all Damages for which the Vendors will be liable to PeakBirch will not exceed 10% of the value of the PeakBirch Shares received by such person at Closing, which is up to an aggregate of CAD\$450,000.

8.5 Calculation of Damages.

The calculation of Damages payable to an Indemnified Party will not be affected by any inspection or inquiries made by on or behalf of the Party entitled to be indemnified under this ARTICLE 8.

8.6 Liability of the Vendors.

The obligations set out in this ARTICLE 8 are several. An Indemnified Party may at its option bring a claim to enforce its rights and benefits under this Agreement or such other agreement against one Person without proceedings against any other Person.

ARTICLE 9 POST-CLOSING MATTERS

9.1 **PeakBirch Financing**

PeakBirch will use commercially reasonable efforts to complete an additional financing for gross proceeds of at least CAD\$500,000, within one (1) month following Closing by way of private placement,

relying on the applicable exemptions pursuant to National Instrument 45-106 *Prospectus* Exemptions, and, if the PeakBirch Financing is extended to any jurisdiction outside Canada, in a manner that will not require registration or prospectus qualification of the PeakBirch Financing under the laws of such jurisdiction, and obtain all necessary approval to complete the transaction described herein.

ARTICLE 10 TERMINATION

10.1 Grounds for Termination.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement may be terminated and the Contemplated Transactions may be abandoned at any time prior to the Closing:

- 10.1.1 by the mutual written agreement of PeakBirch and the Vendors;
- 10.1.2 by PeakBirch in the event of a material breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement of the Company or the Vendors contained herein and the failure of the breaching Party to cure such breach within five (5) Business Days after receipt of written notice from PeakBirch requesting such breach to be cured; provided, however, that there will be no right to terminate if such breach was caused, in whole or in part, by a material breach by PeakBirch;
- 10.1.3 by the Company in the event of a material breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement of PeakBirch contained herein and the failure of PeakBirch to cure such breach within five (5) Business Days after receipt of written notice from the Company requesting such breach to be cured; provided, however, that there will be no right to terminate if such breach was caused, in whole or in part, by a material breach by the Company or any Vendor;
- 10.1.4 by either PeakBirch or the Company if any Governmental Authority will have issued a final and non-appealable order, decree or judgment permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the completion of the Contemplated Transactions or any Governmental Authority has refused to provide a consent or approval set forth, or required by the terms of this Agreement to be set forth, in Section 3.3.2 or Section 4.2.2 of the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule; or
- 10.1.5 by either PeakBirch or the Company if the Closing will not have occurred on or before June 1, 2022 (or such later date as may be agreed to in writing by PeakBirch and the Vendors); provided, however, that the right to terminate this Agreement under this Section 10.1.5 will not be available to any Party whose failure to fulfill any obligation under, or breach of any provision of, this Agreement will have been the cause of, or will have resulted in, the failure of the Closing to occur on or before the applicable date.

10.2 Notice of Termination.

Any Party desiring to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1 will give written notice of such termination to the other Parties to this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.2, specifying the provision(s) pursuant to which such termination is effective.

10.3 Effect of Termination.

If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Article 10, this Agreement will forthwith become void and of no further force and effect and all rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder will be

terminated without further liability of any Party to any other Party; provided, however, that: (i) the provisions of Sections 6.6 and 10.3, and Article 12, and the rights and obligations of the Parties thereunder, will survive any such termination; and (ii) nothing herein will relieve any Party from liability for willful or intentional breach, any Fraud Claim or any other liability arising prior to such termination under this Agreement prior to the date of termination.

ARTICLE 11 RELEASE

11.1 Vendors' Release.

Except for obligations of PeakBirch arising under this Agreement, each of the Vendors, on such Person's own behalf, and on behalf of such Person's Affiliates and each of its and their respective shareholders, partners, equityholders, directors, managers, officers, employees agents, representatives (including legal representatives), heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns, with effect from the Closing, unconditionally and irrevocably waives, releases and forever discharges each of the PeakBirch Group Members and the Company and each of their respective Affiliates and past, present and future shareholders, partners, equityholders, directors, managers, officers, employees, agents, representatives, advisors, lenders, insurers and any predecessors, successors or assigns of any of the foregoing (each, a "PeakBirch Released Person"), from any and all liability of any kind or nature incurred or arising prior to Closing in connection with the Vendor's employment or engagement by, acting as a director or officer of, or through their legal or beneficial ownership of, the Company or any of its Affiliates, as applicable, in each case, whether absolute or contingent, accrued or unaccrued, liquidated or unliquidated, known or unknown, or due or to become due, and the Vendors acknowledge and agree that such Person will not seek to recover any amounts in connection therewith or thereunder from any PeakBirch Released Person; provided that nothing in this Section 11.1 will: (a) be deemed to constitute a release by such Person of any right to enforce its rights under this Agreement or not otherwise released pursuant to this Section 11.1; (b) release the Company from any obligation that the Company might have to pay or provide any Vendor, or any of such Vendors' Affiliates and each of their respective shareholders, partners, equityholders, directors, managers, officers, employees, agents, representatives (including legal representatives), heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns, with compensation, benefits or other entitlements which any such Person has as a result of his or her consulting relationship with the Company, including obligations arising under any employment-related statute or consulting contract; or (c) in any way limit the rights and recourses of a Vendor who was a director or officer of the Company in respect of any rights such Vendor may have pursuant to any directors' and officers' insurance coverage existing on the Closing Date, or any indemnification rights pursuant to the bylaws of the Company to indemnification by the Company for any acts and omissions occurring on or prior to the Closing Date.

The Vendors understand that this Section 11.1 is a full and final release of all claims, demands, causes of action and liabilities of any nature whatsoever, whether or not known, suspected or claimed, that could have been asserted in any legal or equitable proceeding against any PeakBirch Released Person with respect to the period prior to Closing, except as expressly set forth in this Section 11.1. The Vendors hereby acknowledge that each of the Vendors is aware that such Vendor may hereafter discover claims or facts in addition to or different from those that the Vendor now knows or believes to be true with respect to the matters released herein, but that it is the intention of the Vendors to fully and finally release all such claims, demands, causes of action and liabilities of any nature relative thereto that do exist, may exist or heretofore have existed.

11.2 PeakBirch Release.

Except for obligations of the Company and the Vendors arising under this Agreement, each PeakBirch Group Member and each of their respective shareholders, partners, equityholders, directors, managers, officers, employees, agents, representatives (including legal representatives), heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns, with effect from the Closing, unconditionally and irrevocably waives, releases and forever discharges each of the Company and the Vendors and each of their respective Affiliates and past, present and future shareholders, partners, equityholders, directors, managers, officers, employees, agents, representatives, advisors, lenders, insurers and any predecessors, successors or assigns of any of the foregoing (each, a "Greenlite Released Person"), from any and all liability of any kind or nature incurred or arising prior to Closing in connection with the Vendor's employment or engagement by, acting as a director or officer of, or through their legal or beneficial ownership of, the Company or any of its Affiliates, as applicable, in each case, whether absolute or contingent, accrued or unaccrued, liquidated or unliquidated, known or unknown, or due or to become due, and each PeakBirch Group Member acknowledges and agrees that it will not seek to recover any amounts in connection therewith or thereunder from any Greenlite Released Person; provided that nothing in this Section 11.2 will be deemed to constitute a release by such Person of any right to enforce its rights under this Agreement or not otherwise released pursuant to this Section 11.2.

PeakBirch understands that this Section 11.2 is a full and final release of all claims, demands, causes of action and liabilities of any nature whatsoever, whether or not known, suspected or claimed, that could have been asserted in any legal or equitable proceeding against any Greenlite Released Person with respect to the period prior to Closing, except as expressly set forth in this Section 11.2. PeakBirch hereby acknowledges that PeakBirch is aware that PeakBirch may hereafter discover claims or facts in addition to or different from those that PeakBirch now knows or believes to be true with respect to the matters released herein, but that it is the intention of PeakBirch to fully and finally release all such claims, demands, causes of action and liabilities of any nature relative thereto that do exist, may exist or heretofore have existed.

ARTICLE 12 GENERAL PROVISIONS

12.1 Non-Survival of Representations, Warranties and Covenants.

The representations, warranties or covenants contained in this Agreement shall survive the Closing Time for a period of one year unless otherwise specified in this Agreement.

12.2 Notices.

Any notice, direction or other communication given regarding the matters contemplated by this Agreement (each a "**Notice**") must be in writing, sent by personal delivery, courier or email transmission (provided that the sender of such email transmission does not receive a delivery failure notice from the intended recipient in respect of such email transmission), or similar means of recorded electronic communication, addressed as follows:

12.2.1 If to PeakBirch, to:

PeakBirch Logic Inc. Suite 400, 837 West Hastings Street Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 3N6

Attention: Marc Mulvaney

Email: marc@lifted.com

with a copy to:

Gowling WLG (Canada) LLP First Canadian Place, 16th Floor

100 King St West #1600

Toronto ON M5X 1G5

Attention:

Email:

12.2.2 If to the Company or the Vendors, to:

102 - 1102 Hornby St. Vancouver BC V6Z 1V8

Attention: President

Email: greenlitefunding@gmail.com

with a copy to:

McMillan LLP Suite 1500, 1055 West Georgia Street Vancouver, British Columbia V6E 4N7

Attention: Desmond Balakrishnan

Email: Desmond.Balakrishnan@mcmillan.ca

Subject to the foregoing, a Notice is deemed to be given and received on the date on which it was delivered or transmitted if it is a Business Day and the delivery or transmission was made prior to 6:00 p.m. (local time in place of receipt) and otherwise on the next Business Day. A Party may change its address for service from time to time by providing a Notice in accordance with the foregoing. Any subsequent Notice must be sent to the Party at its changed address. Any element of a Party's address that is not specifically changed in a Notice will be assumed not to be changed.

12.3 Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed and delivered (including by facsimile, "pdf" or other electronic transmission) in any number of counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.

12.4 Amendments and Waivers.

This Agreement may not be amended or waived except by an instrument in writing signed by an authorized representative of each Party. No course of conduct or failure or delay by any Party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder will operate as a waiver thereof, nor will any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege.

12.5 **Severability.**

Wherever possible, each provision hereof will be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under Applicable Laws, but if any one or more of the provisions contained herein will, for any reason, be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, such provision will be ineffective to the extent, but only to the extent, of such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability without invalidating the remainder of such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or provisions or any other provisions hereof, unless such a construction would be unreasonable.

12.6 Assignment; Successors and Assigns.

Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or obligations of any Party hereunder may be assigned, delegated or otherwise transferred by such Party, in whole or in part (whether by operation of law or otherwise), without the prior written consent of each other Party, and any attempt to make any such assignment, delegation or other transfer without such consent will be null and void; provided, however, that PeakBirch may assign its rights, interests and obligations under this Agreement, without the consent of the other Parties, to any Person who acquires all or substantially all of the assets and business of PeakBirch or to any Affiliate of PeakBirch, subject to the assumption in writing by such Person or Affiliate of PeakBirch's obligations hereunder; and provided, further, that PeakBirch may assign or encumber this Agreement or any of its rights and obligations hereunder as security for any Indebtedness of PeakBirch or its Affiliates without the consent of the other Parties. Subject to the preceding sentences, this Agreement will be binding upon, inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

12.7 No Third Party Beneficiaries.

Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended or will be construed to confer upon any third party, other than the signatories to this Agreement and their respective successors and assigns permitted by Section 12.6, any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement.

12.8 Governing Law.

This Agreement and all disputes and controversies relating to or arising out of this Agreement are governed by and will be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of British Columbia and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein. Each signatory to this Agreement irrevocably attorns and submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the British Columbia courts situated in the City of Vancouver (and appellate courts therefrom) and waives objection to the venue of any proceeding in such court or that such court provides an inappropriate forum.

12.9 **Specific Performance.**

The Parties agree that irreparable and ongoing Damages would occur in the event that any provision of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with its terms or otherwise was breached. Accordingly, each Party agrees that in the event of any actual or threatened breach of this Agreement by another Party, the non-breaching Party will be entitled, in addition to all other rights and remedies that it

may have, to obtain injunctive or other equitable relief (including a temporary restraining order, a preliminary injunction and a final injunction) to prevent any actual or threatened breach of any of such provisions and to enforce such provisions specifically, without the necessity of posting a bond or other security or of proving actual Damages. The prevailing Party in any action commenced under this Section 12.9 (whether through a monetary judgment, injunctive relief or otherwise) will be entitled to recover from the other Parties reimbursement for its reasonable legal fees and court costs incurred in connection with such action. Subject to any other provision hereof including, without limitation, Section 10.3 hereof, such remedies will not be the exclusive remedies for any breach of this Agreement but will be in addition to all other remedies available hereunder at law or in equity to each of the Parties hereto.

12.10 Interpretation; Absence of Presumption.

12.10.1 The defined terms and headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and will not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. In this Agreement, except to the extent otherwise provided herein or that the context otherwise requires: (i) words used in the singular include the plural and words in the plural include the singular; (ii) reference to any gender includes the other gender and neuter; (iii) the words "include", "includes" and "including" will be deemed to be followed by the words "without limitation"; (iv) the words "herein", "hereof", "hereto", "hereunder" and words of similar import will be deemed references to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Section or other provision hereof; (v) reference to any Article, Section, Exhibit or Schedule will mean such Article or Section of, or such Exhibit or Schedule to, this Agreement, as the case may be, and references in any Section or definition to any clause means such clause of such Section or definition; (vi) reference to any Applicable Laws will mean such Applicable Laws (including all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder) as amended, modified, codified or reenacted, in whole or in part, and in effect at the time of determining compliance or applicability; and (vii) references to "\$" and "CAD" are to the lawful currency of Canada. Whenever the last day for the exercise of any privilege or the discharge or any duty hereunder will fall upon a day that is not a Business Day, the Party having such privilege or duty may exercise such privilege or discharge such duty on the next succeeding day which is a Business Day.

12.10.2 Each Party acknowledges and agrees that the Parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement. In the event that an ambiguity or a question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement will be construed as if drafted jointly by the Parties, and no presumption or burden of proof will arise favoring or disfavoring any Party by virtue of the authorship of any provision of this Agreement.

12.10.3 In the event of any inconsistency between the statements in this Agreement and statements in the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule, the PeakBirch Disclosure Record or the other schedules referred to herein, the statements in this Agreement will control and the statements in the Greenlite Disclosure Schedule, the PeakBirch Disclosure Record and the other schedules referred to herein will be disregarded to the extent of such inconsistency.

12.11 Independent Legal Advice.

Each of the Vendors acknowledges that, prior to executing this Agreement, the Vendor has received, or has declined to receive, independent legal advice and the Vendor confirms that the Vendor fully understands this Agreement and is entering into this Agreement voluntarily.

12.12 Announcements.

None of the Parties may make a press release, public statement or announcement or other public disclosure in respect of this Agreement or the Contemplated Transactions without the prior written consent of the other Parties, unless required by Applicable Law or a Governmental Authority. Where such disclosure is required by Applicable Law or a Governmental Authority, the Party required to make such disclosure will provide notice to the other Parties as soon as reasonably possible and shall to the extent possible consult with the other Parties with respect to the content and timing of such disclosure.

12.13 Entire Agreement.

This Agreement (including the Annexes and the Exhibits referred to herein and which form part hereof) contain the complete agreement among the Parties and supersede any prior understandings, agreements or representations by or among the Parties, whether written or oral, with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof. This Agreement may not be contradicted by evidence of prior, contemporaneous or subsequent oral agreements of the Parties. There are no unwritten or oral agreements between the Parties.

[Signature Page Follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has caused this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered as of the date first written above.

PEAKBIRCH LOGIC INC.

	Ву:	(Signed) "Marc Mulvaney"
		Name: Marc Mulvaney
		Title: Chief Executive Officer
		GREENLITE CROWDFUNDING CORP.
	Ву:	(Signed) "Jatinder Dhaliwal"
		Name: Jatinder Dhaliwal
		Title: Director
SIGNED AND DELIVERED in the presence of: Signed) "Bhupinder Dhaliwal" Vitness:)))))))	(Signed) "Jatinder Dhaliwal" Jatinder Dhaliwal
	,,	TURRIS INVESTMENT INC.
	Ву:	(Signed) "Von Torres"
		Name: Von Torres
		Title: President
		MERCANTILE HOLDINGS INC.
	Ву:	(Signed) "Wilson Su"
		Name: Wilson Su
		Title: Director

SIGNED AND DELIVERED in the presence of:)))))	
(Signed) "Alice Perez"	,	(Signed) "Nicole Jonzon"
Witness:))	Nicole Jonzon
		1284368 BC LTD.
	Ву:	(Signed) "Aviar Dhaliwal"
		Name: Aviar Dhaliwal
		Title: Director

Annex 1 Vendors

Shareholder	Address	Greenlite Shares Held	% of Greenlite Shares held as at the Agreement Date
Jatinder Dhaliwal	Redacted for Privacy	1,160,100	23.2%
Turris Investment Inc.	Redacted for Privacy	1,000,000	20.0%
Mercantile Holdings Inc.	Redacted for Privacy	1,000,000	20.0%
Nicole Jonzon	Redacted for Privacy	1,000,000	20.0%
1284368 BC Ltd.	Redacted for Privacy	840,000	16.8%
TOTAL:		5,000,100	100%

Annex 2 Payment Shares

No.	Name	Address	No. of PeakBirch Shares
6.	Jatinder Dhaliwal	Redacted for Privacy	8,352,553
7.	Turris Investment Inc.	Redacted for Privacy	7,199,856
8.	Mercantile Holdings Inc.	Redacted for Privacy	7,199,856
9.	Nicole Jonzon	Redacted for Privacy	7,199,856
10.	1284368 BC Ltd.	Redacted for Privacy	6,047,879
		TOTAL	36,000,000

Exhibit A Registration Instructions

Name	Address
Jatinder Dhaliwal	Redacted for Privacy
Turris Investment Inc.	Redacted for Privacy
Mercantile Holdings Inc.	Redacted for Privacy
Nicole Jonzon	Redacted for Privacy
1284368 BC Ltd.	Redacted for Privacy